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Restored Jurkovič House now open
Moravská galerie v Brně

Jana Nečase 2, Brno–Žabovřesky

gala opening on 31 March 2011, 5 pm 

Museum of Applied Arts, Husova 14 / Respirium

combined with the opening of the Made in Villa exhibition

RESTORATION OF THE JURKOVIČ HOUSE AND GARDEN 

TRANSAT ARCHITEKTI / Petr Všetečka, Robert Václavík, Karel Menšík, Alena Všetečková 

COLLABORATION ON THE GARDEN RESTORATION

Tomáš Jiránek

EXHIBITION DESIGN

Ateliér Štěpán

GLASS PAINTING ON THE HOUSE FRONTAGE

Josef Bolf

MG CURATOR AND SPECIALIST GUARANTOR OF THE RESTORATION 

Martina Lehmannová

The home built by famous architect Dušan Jurkovič in Brno-Žabovřesky is now open to the public after an extensive restoration. The house, administered by the Moravian Gallery since 2006, has been restored to the its original appearance and atmosphere, including the layout of the interior, identical with that of the period when the Jurkovič family lived there. A gem of the  art nouveau, dating to 1906, it is one of the highlights of the genre of modernist architecture inspired by British and  Viennese models, with folk art elements.

   Visitors to the house may savour the magic atmosphere of the building and become acquainted with Dušan Jurkovič’s work at a permanent exhibition, as well as having the opportunity to study the progress of the house restoration at a shorter-term exhibition. The gala opening of the Jurkovič House was held on 31 March at 5 pm, at the opening of the Made in the Villa exhibition in the Museum of Applied Arts. 
Guided tours of the Jurkovič House started on 1 April 2011. Visits should be booked on the Moravian Gallery website, at www.moravska-galerie.cz/jurkovicova-vila. 
We approached the restoration of the Jurkovič House as the restoration of an exhibit, albeit of unusual size and complexity, taking into account the fact that visitors would have to move around within the house. Although there is room for only small groups of visitors, we decided to create a barrier-free environment. The house restoration also meant “disclosing Jurkovič”, especially his work with scale, detail and colour. He does not disappoint in this respect: knowledgeable visitors may be surprised by the scumble of the authentic colour scheme, as Jurkovič’s best-known constructions now feature opaque paint. The new interior equipment is chiefly white in order not to clash with the subtle shades of scumble. The degree of care for the house as an exhibit has also been reflected in the technical side of the restoration. During the roof repair, the house had to be sheltered by a “house above a house” construction, and the technical infrastructure of the construction was supplied with a security system, including an automated fire-extinguishing system as the house is largely made of wood. 

Petr Všetečka

restoration architect 

DUŠAN JURKOVIČ AND HIS HOUSE

Dušan Jurkovič (1868-1947) was one of the most prominent Czech and Slovak architects of his era. He was born in Slovakia. His creative years culminated in Brno (1899-1919), and after the establishment of Czechoslovakia as an independent country, he moved to Bratislava in order to help shape modern Slovak architecture. When his Brno house was completed, Dušan Jurkovič opened it to the public with Dušan Jurkovič. An Exhibition of Architecture and the Applied Arts, a show held from 26 August to 20 September 1906. The latest trends in architecture, interior design and technical equipment were on view. Jurkovič moved into the house, with his wife Božena and sons Jan and Jiří in 1906; their youngest son Pavel was born in 1907. Two servants and a warden also resided in the house; the warden’s flat was in the basement. 

   Dušan Jurkovič’s house in Brno-Žabovřesky is among his most important constructions, blending elements of British, Viennese and Scandinavian modernism and folk art. Jurkovič laid emphasis on harmony between exterior and interior, and equipped the house with furniture made to his own designs, together with a number of works of art created by his friends. The building embodies the concepts of the “art lover’s house” and Gesamtkunstwerk, current at the time. 

   The house was built in 1906. Jurkovič purchased the land in 1905. The location, near Císařský les Wood, on a slope above the Svratka valley, was then part of the outlying village of Žabovřesky. It was to be the first building of an artists’ colony, modelled on Vienna (the Hohe Warte estate by Josef Hoffmann) and Darmstadt (the Mathildenhöhe artists’ colony by Joseph Maria Olbrich).

   The base of the construction is stone, as is the entrance loggia. Jurkovič used local materials, among them reddish limestone, possibly from the Červený kopec hill. The house itself is made of wood, although this is not obvious at first sight. It has a wooden framework lined with cork boards covered with plaster, while the space between the boards is filled with slag. This is thus an early example of “sandwich construction”. The critic Karel Elgart Sokol commented in Národní listy during 1906 that the material was “too bold for us conservatives”. 
ROOMS AND FURNISHING 

The entrance frontage was dominated by a glass mosaic designed by Adolf Kašpar, with a motif derived from The Shepherd and the Dragon, a fairy-tale. The layout of the house consisted of “prestigious” social areas, a working section on the first floor, and private rooms on both floors.

The central space of the interior is a staircase hall, then a highly modern feature, in which Jurkovič paid special attention to the furniture and fittings. The wooden frame of a staircase leading to the first floor is hidden by a niche decorated by a folk artist from Čataj, with motifs chiefly in shades of blue. The furniture and the carpet were also blue. The bottom section of the walls was lined with dark-red Lincrusta. The doors and the ceiling were painted in green scumble, with carving detail picked out in red. An alcove adjoined the main space, with a seating area and a bookcase; it could be separated from the room by a heavy curtain. Light maple wood and tapestries from the Rudolf Schlattauer workshop enhanced its unique atmosphere. The space was intended for the lady of the house, as is also indicated by the Mummy statue by Franta Úprka.

Next to the hall was a drawing room. In the catalogue of the 1906 exhibition, Jurkovič referred to it as a “furniture showroom” and did indeed offer the suites of furniture sets on display to his clients. The first of these can be now found at the Nové Město nad Metují chateau, while another suite was purchased by Tomáš Baťa for his villa in Zlín; unfortunately, it has not survived.

In 1906, the remaining rooms on the ground floor housed models, plans and photographs of Jurkovič’s work. When his show was over, the kitchen, children’s room, bedroom and bathroom were furnished. The house was heated by hot air, but after 1911 Jurkovič had radiator-based central heating installed in the house. Both electricity and gas were used for lighting. The chandelier in the staircase hall is remarkable: the frame was originally designed for gas lighting but was later modified for electric bulbs. 

THE JURKOVIČ HOUSE — NOW AND THEN 

Dušan Jurkovič lived in the building with his family until 1919, when they moved to Slovakia. The house then changed hands several times, finally becoming home to the Švancara family in 1938. The building remained in private hands until 2006, when it was acquired by the Moravian Gallery, Brno. This institution initiated the Dušan Samo Jurkovič Centre project, comprising a restoration of the house and its opening to the public. In 2006 and 2007 a team of experts, under the guidance of the Transat architekti studio, performed a thorough survey of the house and research into its contents past and present, followed by a general reconstruction and refit in 2009-2011.
Jurkovič used the kitchen, children’s room and bedroom as exhibition rooms for his designs during the Dušan Jurkovič. An Exhibition of Architecture and the Applied Arts in 1906. The premises now house once more an exhibition devoted to the architect’s work. The three rooms, the original wall decoration of which has survived under layers of paint, will host a permanent exhibition centring around Jurkovič’s “Moravian-Czech” period. 
The architect’s studio will house short-term exhibitions, while the guest room will be used as a children’s studio. The attic has been converted into a research space for the Dušan Samo Jurkovič Centre. 

   The refurbished basement now houses visitors’ facilities. The storeroom and warden’s flat, converted into a cold-war air-raid shelter in the 1950’s, now contain toilets, a cloakroom and a kitchenette. The basement can be also accessed via a ramp for disabled visitors, whose further movement within the house is facilitated by a lift. 

RESTORATION OF THE JURKOVIČ HOUSE 

Much changed in the house over the years. In 1911-1913, Jurkovič designed some building modifications, and when he left for Slovakia he took some of the furniture with him. The equipment in the hall was probably still original in the early 1920’s. Later owners commissioned modifications that changed the nature of the room; the majority of them involving new coats of paint. However, the original scumble on wooden doors and windows, beams, walls and floors has been preserved under more recent layers. The original layers were brought to light during the house restoration.

   The original wooden ceiling in the hall was covered with a plastered reed soffit in the 1930’s, which incidentally preserved the original green scumble below. The ceiling now stands out as one of the most remarkable elements in the interior, thanks to its fine degree of preservation. The bookcase in the alcove was probably taken apart in the 1950’s; the chandeliers were  removed and stored in the attic and the “nuclear” air-raid shelter was built in the cellar in the same period, at a time when several families lived in the house. The 1960’s saw the first major reconstruction. This concentrated largely on the exterior and the original plaster was replaced. In view of its high quality, this more recent plaster was not removed during the latest restoration.

One of the most distinctive elements of the restoration is the new feature on the house frontage, installed in September 2010. It is a glass mosaic, or more precisely, a glass painting, based on The Shepherd and the Dragon, a fairy-tale. The painting was created by Josef Bolf.

The restoration process has been carefully documented and became the basis of a heritage restoration manual intended for the specialist public. An individual section devoted to the manual can be found on the Moravian Gallery website. 

Martina Lehmannová

Curator

  Moravian Gallery, Brno
THE JURKOVIČ HOUSE AND THE NORWAY GRANTS
The Dušan Samo Jurkovič House is among the most important architectural mementos of the fin-de-siecle Brno. Together with buildings in Pustevny, Luhačovice and the Nové Město nad Metují chateau, it constitutes the base of the work of Dušan Jurkovič preserved in the Czech Republic. The Moravian Gallery has administered the Jurkovič House since 2006, when it purchased the house and the garden from private owners for 15,162,950 crowns. The total cost of the restoration has amounted to 1,251,878 Euros, approximately 35 million crowns. Some 30 million was spent on the house restoration and the rest on the establishment of the permanent exhibition and the research centre. 

   The Dušan Samo Jurkovič Centre, Brno project was carried out with support provided through the Norwegian Financial Mechanism (Norway Grants), in the Preservation of European Cultural Heritage category. The principal objective of the project was the model restoration of a heritage monument and its opening to the public. 
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 JURKOVIČ HOUSE OPENING HOURS

April – October / Tuesday – Sunday

10-12, 12.30 –18 

November – March / Thursday – Sunday

10-12 , 12.30 – 16 

JURKOVIČ HOUSE ENTRANCE FEES
Full adult 100 Kč
Discount 50 Kč (children, students, Friends of the MG, senior citizens)
Family 220 Kč (2 adults and 1-3 children under 15)
Free entry ICOM, AMG, UHS, ZTP holders + company, children under 6, press
Extra fee for commentary in languages other than Czech: 100 Kč + 30 Kč / per person (English, German). The tour is intended for a minimum of three people and must be booked in advance. 

PARTNERS
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MEDIA CONTACT 

Martina Vašková, Marketing and Communication Department, +420 724 516 672, +420 532 169 174

tisk@moravska-galerie.cz
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5 budov, 1 galerie.

Pražákův palác Uměleckoprůmyslové muzeum Místodržitelský palác Jurkovičova vila Rodný dům Josefa Hoffmanna

_1361867652.bin

